

# Minutes of the regular meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin: December 3, 1959. 1959

Milwaukee, Wisconsin: Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, 1959

https://digital.library.wisc.edu/1711.dl/M4GECNNEO5R6S86

Copyright 2008 Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System

The libraries provide public access to a wide range of material, including online exhibits, digitized collections, archival finding aids, our catalog, online articles, and a growing range of materials in many media.

When possible, we provide rights information in catalog records, finding aids, and other metadata that accompanies collections or items. However, it is always the user's obligation to evaluate copyright and rights issues in light of their own use.

### REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN

Held in Room A 109, University of Wisconsin - Milwaukee (Downtown Campus)

Thursday, December 3, 1959, 9 A.M.

### President Steiger presiding

PRESENT: Regents Bassett, DeBardeleben, Renk, Rennebohm (entered meeting at

9:10 A.M.), Steiger, Watson, Werner.

ABSENT: Regents Gelatt, Jensen, Konnak, who were all present for committee

meetings on the preceding day.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Renk, it was VOTED, That the minutes of the regular meetings of the Board held on October 24, 1959, and November 14, 1959, be approved as sent out to the Regents.

### REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNIVERSITY

Upon motion of Regent Watson, seconded by Regent DeBardeleben, it was VOTED, That the gifts and grants listed in <u>EXHIBIT A</u> and <u>EXHIBIT A-1</u>, attached, be accepted; and that the Vice President - Business and Finance be authorized to sign the agreements.

Upon motion of Regent Renk, seconded by Regent Watson, it was VOTED, That the actions taken by the President of the University since the last meeting of the Regents, relating to appointments, resignations, leaves of absence, and change of status of personnel with rank less than that of Associate Professor, which are included in the file of employment forms presented at this meeting, be approved, ratified, and confirmed.

Vice President Peterson presented the recommendations and report of the Vice President - Business and Finance.

Upon motion of Regent Watson, seconded by Regent Werner, it was VOTED, That recommendation No. 1, listed under the Recommendations and Report of the Vice President - Business and Finance (I. Recommendations) (EXHIBIT B attached), be approved.

(Regent Rennebohm entered the meeting at 9:10 A.M.)

Upon motion of Regent Renk, seconded by Regent Werner, it was VOTED, That recommendation No. 2, listed under the Recommendations and Report of the Vice President - Business and Finance (I. Recommendations) (EXHIBIT B attached), be approved.

Upon motion of Regent Renk, seconded by Regent Watson, it was VOTED, That recommendation No. 3, listed under the Recommendations and Report of the Vice President - Business and Finance (I. Recommendations) (EXHIBIT B attached), be approved.

The Vice President - Business and Finance presented, for the information of the Regents, a Report of Actions Taken by the State Building Commission on November 19, 1959, Affecting the University (see Item II. of the Recommendations and Report of the Vice President - Business and Finance, EXHIBIT B attached).

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Watson, it was VOTED, That the Report of Actions Taken numbered III., listed under the Recommendations and Report of the Vice President - Business and Finance (EXHIBIT B attached), be approved, ratified and confirmed.

The Vice President - Business and Finance presented, for the information of the Regents, Report of Actions Taken (pursuant to Regent authorization of March 14, 1942) (see Item IV. of the Recommendations and Report of the Vice President - Business and Finance, and Exhibit B-1 appended to EXHIBIT B attached).

The Vice President - Business and Finance presented the report of budget transfers for the period November 18, 1959 through November 23, 1959, for the information of the Regents. (See Exhibit B-1 appended to EXHIBIT B attached)

Regent Watson presented the report of the Educational Committee.

Upon motion of Regent Watson, seconded by Regent DeBardeleben, it was VOTED, That Richard F. Heber be appointed Associate Professor of Education, from December 19, 1959 to June 6, 1960, at a salary of \$6,000 for the period; salary to be charged to Department of Education, Instruction, and a grant from the U.S. Office of Education, (Fund 484-2959).

Upon motion of Regent Watson, seconded by Regent Renk, it was VOTED, That the following recommendations of the Educational Committee be adopted:

- 1. That Charles D. Cornwell, Associate Professor of Chemistry, be granted leave of absence, without pay, for the second semester of 1959-60.
- 2. That Philip G. Fox, Professor of Commerce, be granted leave of absence for the second semester of 1959-60, on summer session basis; salary for the semester, \$5,780, to be charged as follows: \$944.00 to Summer Session Trust Fund, and \$4,836.00 to School of Commerce.
- 3. That John M. Culbertson, Associate Professor of Commerce, be granted leave of absence, without pay, for the second semester of 1959-60.
- 4. That Herschel W. Leibowitz, Associate Professor of Psychology, be granted leave of absence, without pay, for the second semester of 1959-60.

5. That Hugh L. Cook, Professor of Agricultural Economics, be granted leave of absence, without pay, from January 1, 1960 to March 31, 1960.

Upon motion of Regent Watson, seconded by Regent Rennebohm, it was VOTED, That the resignation of Andrew C. Rice, Associate Professor of Dairy and Food Industries, be accepted; to take effect November 14, 1959.

### CONFIDENTIAL - NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Upon motion of Regent Watson, seconded by Regent Renk, it was VOTED, That upon the recommendation of the Faculty of the School of Music, a citation of merit be awarded at the Midwinter Music Clinic, January 8-10, 1960, to:

Joseph E. Skornicka - Milwaukee, Wisconsin.

Regent Watson presented the following recommendation of the Educational Committee relating to the administration of summer sessions:

That the regulation relating to Summer Sessions Administration, adopted by the Regents on October 25, 1947, be revised to read as follows:

Summer Sessions Administration. The Director of the Summer Session will act as a general coordinating officer and will have specific responsibility for publications and non-degree candidate students. After the educational programming has been effected by the departmental chairmen and the college deans, the deans will submit the program and budget to the President. After the budget has been approved, appointments and payrolls will be administered in the same manner as during the regular academic year.

Regent Watson explained that the adoption of this recommendation would result in the Director of the Summer Session merely being in charge of coordinating the summer session programs, with the programming, budgeting and other administrative details of the summer session programs being a part of the regular year-around University operations.

Upon motion of Regent Watson, seconded by Regent DeBardeleben, it was VOTED, That the above recommendation of the Educational Committee be adopted.

Regent Watson presented and moved the adoption of a Resolution Concerning Affidavit and Oath Provisions of National Defense Education Act of 1958 (copy attached as <a href="EXHIBIT C">EXHIBIT C</a>), which was unanimously recommended by the members of the Educational Committee. The motion was seconded by Regent DeBardeleben.

Regent Rennebohm inquired whether the adoption of this resolution would eliminate the participation of the University of Wisconsin in this program. Regent Watson explained that the University would continue to have this financial aid available to those students who wish to use it, but would reaffirm opposition to the oath and affidavit provisions of the Act. Vice President Harrington explained that, at the time the University first accepted grants under this Act, the affidavit and oath provisions were protested, upon recommendation of the Administrative Committee and of the University Committee, as was explained to the Regents at that time, although the Regents had not, at that time, passed any formal resolution regarding the affidavit and oath provisions.

Regent Renk inquired how you would obtain the elimination of the oath and affidavit provisions, if you are opposed to them, and still accept the funds. He thought the Regents should vote in favor of this resolution, as it expresses the thinking of the Regents, but believed the matter should be reviewed in another year if the oath and affidavit provisions are not eliminated from the Act by that time. President Elvehjem reported that arrangements are under way to request a change in the law as soon as Congress is in session. Vice President Harrington explained that some schools, opposed to the oath and affidavit provisions of the Act, have refused to accept the funds, and others have accepted the funds under protest with respect to such provisions. He reported that this matter is under consideration by the University Committee and will be discussed at the next faculty meeting, which might result in a faculty resolution on this subject. He stated that the resolution recommended by the Educational Committee was not intended to stop discussion of this subject by the faculty or others; and that it had been agreed by the Educational Committee that they would consider any recommendations on this subject coming from the faculty.

Regent Werner noted that an objection to the affidavit required by the Act is the futility of it, since people who are opposed to our form of government would take the oath anyway and disregard the responsibility connected with it.

Regent Rennebohm objected to the proposed resolution on the basis that it did not contain an expression of appreciation for the funds which were being provided for the needy students. President Elvehjem noted that the land grant colleges had thanked the Congress for making these funds available, and had then gone on to object to the oath and affidavit provisions.

Regent Bassett stated that he would have to take exception to the report and recommendation of the Educational Committee and object to the entire resolution.

He stated that it was a travesty for the Regents to accuse the government of the United States of trammeling inquiry by imposing unjust restrictions, and of assuming that these individuals are guilty before proven innocent, but at the same time accepting the funds provided under this Act. He believed the tenor of the whole resolution was pseudo-intellectualism, and that it was the height of pseudo-intellectualism to protect the very people who would destroy the United States. He noted that objection was not voiced, to the taking of an oath of allegiance, by members of the Armed Forces and by persons holding public offices, including the Regents of the University.

Regent DeBardeleben spoke in support of adoption of the resolution, which he noted had been unanimously recommended by the Educational Committee. He stated that his initial reaction had been that he would vote against the acceptance of the funds, because of the objectionable features, but on reflection had concluded that it would be just as arbitrary and dogmatic to deny needy students in a tax-supported institution the funds provided by the Act. He stated that it was an appropriate resolution for the Regents to adopt, because the University of Wisconsin is a tax-supported institution. It was his opinion that there was no analogy between the taking of an oath by a member of the Armed Forces, or an oath of office by a person accepting a public office, and the oath and affidavit required by this Act.

The vote was taken on the above motion and it was voted, with Regents Bassett and Rennebohm voting "No". Regent Rennebohm explained that he had voted in the negative because he believed that the Regents should say "thank you" for the funds provided by the Act, and because the resolution just condemns and criticizes the government without offering any suggestions.

Regent Renk presented the report of the Business and Finance Committee.

Regent Renk moved the adoption of the following recommendation of the Business and Finance Committee, and the motion was seconded by Regent Werner:

That the President's requests to the State Board on Government Operations for \$27,912 to finance the cancer detection program of the State Laboratory of Hygiene for the period January 1 to June 30, 1960, and \$68,015 to cover the net deficit in the operation of University Hospitals to December 1, 1959, be ratified, confirmed, and approved.

President Elvehjem explained that a program of cancer detection had been conducted under the direction of Dr. Stovall for some three years under a grant from the federal government, which is being discontinued. He stated that the government funds had been given for the research phase of this program and had now been withdrawn because the government felt that the objective of the research had been accomplished and that the program was now a service function.

The question was put on the above motion and it was voted.

Regent Renk presented the following recommendation of the Business and Finance Committee:

That, subject to the availability of appropriations, not to exceed \$2,500 be budgeted annually for each of the next three years for costs in connection with membership in the National Federation of College and University Business Officers Association.

Regent Renk moved the approval of the above recommendation and noted that it had been recommended by a three to two vote in the Business and Finance Committee. He said the objection to the recommendation was that it would be a mistake to take our money and set up a lobbying group in Washington. Regent DeBardeleben inquired as to how this would benefit the University. Vice President Peterson stated that it would help the University and higher education in a better working relationship with the various agencies of the federal government. He noted that there had been no central office or place for federal agencies and educational administrators to clear matters, particularly with regard to the question of overhead allowances on government research contracts with educational institutions. He stated that this proposal was recommended by the Association of American Universities, and that it was proposed to set up a budget of about \$50,000 a year for three years to determine how it would work out, with the cost being prorated to whatever institutions participated. He noted that the proposal would be carried out whether the University participates or not. Regent Bassett indicated that he was opposed to the recommendation on the basis that the University would have to continue to do the same work in negotiating government contracts, and on the basis that small offices set up in Washington initially for a few years ultimately become lobby units, and he did not believe the University should set up a lobbying office. President Elvehjem pointed out that the money involved in government research contracts at the University is tremendous, and that this proposed program would greatly facilitate the work of the University business administration.

The motion was seconded by Regent Watson and it was voted, with Regents Bassett and Renk voting "No".

Upon motion of Regent Renk, seconded by Regent Bassett, it was VOTED, That \$12,000 received from the State in payment for the Babcock property, 432 North Lake Street, Madison, be credited to the principal of the Stephen M. Babcock Endowment Fund in the Consolidated University Trust Funds. (The Babcock home at 432 North Lake Street was a part of the estate bequeathed by the late Stephen Moulton Babcock to the University as an endowment fund, one-half of the income to be used for the purchase of books for the Agricultural Library and one-half for the support of a research fellowship in Agricultural Chemistry (Biochemistry). The property was used for many years as a cooperative residence for students in the Farm Short Course. The house was torn down in 1954 due to its deteriorated physical condition, and since then the land has been used as a parking lot. The property has been carried on the Trust Funds records as an uncapitalized miscellaneous asset valued at \$10,000. The land is now needed as a part of the site for the Extension Building. Adjoining lots of identical size which are being acquired by

the University were appraised by the Madison Real Estate Board at \$12,000, and the State Building Commission authorized payment of \$12,000 to the University Trust Funds for the Babcock lot.)

Upon motion of Regent Renk, seconded by Regent Watson, it was
VOTED, That the following two resolutions relating to amendments to resolutions regarding parietal rules and rates, adopted at a meeting held on April 11,
1959, be adopted:

- 1. RESOLVED, that paragraph 6 of the resolutions regarding parietal rules and rates adopted in connection with Project No. Wis. 47-CH-38(D) at a meeting held on April 11, 1959, be amended to provide as follows:
  - "6. That the parietal rules herein set forth shall be subordinate to the parietal rules heretofore adopted in connection with the issuance of Wisconsin University Building Corporation Student Apartments Bonds of 1956 and Wisconsin University Building Corporation Dormitory Bonds of 1957, insofar as there may be any conflict between them."
- 2. RESOLVED, that paragraph 6 of the resolutions regarding parietal rules and rates adopted in connection with Project No. Wis. 47-CH-37(DS) at a meeting held on April 11, 1959, be amended to provide as follows:
  - "6. That the parietal rules herein set forth shall be subordinate to the parietal rules heretofore adopted in connection with the issuance of Wisconsin University Building Corporation Student Apartments Bonds of 1956, Wisconsin University Building Corporation Dormitory Bonds of 1957 and Wisconsin University Building Corporation Student Family Apartments Bonds of 1957, insofar as there may be any conflict between them."

Upon motion of Regent Renk, seconded by Regent Bassett, it was VOTED, That \$15,000 from the cash balance in Fund 52 (Milwaukee Auxiliary Enterprises), University of Wisconsin - Milwaukee, be allotted for the purpose of preparing preliminary sketches for an addition to the University of Wisconsin - Milwaukee Student Union Building.

Regent Renk presented and moved the approval of the following recommendation of the Business and Finance Committee:

That the offer of Fitzpatrick Realty Corporation, Inc., to purchase Lots 6 through 17, Block 44, University Hill Farms, North Hill Addition, be approved in accordance with the terms of the Purchase Agreement dated December 1, 1959, including the condition that the Regents agree for themselves, their successors and assigns that for a period of twenty years no motel or hotel shall be erected on the premises now described as Block 45 in said plat.

Regent Watson inquired whether the restrictions adopted by the Regents or the city ordinance now provided for single family dwellings in this area. Regent Rennebohm replied in the affirmative, and noted that it would be up to the purchaser to obtain a rezoning of the property. There was discussion of the proposed purchase price in relationship to the price for single family residential development, and in relationship to the consideration by the Regents in restricting possible use of adjacent property.

In order to further clarify the above recommendation, Regent Renk presented the following recommendation of the Business and Finance Committee:

RESOLUTION RELATING TO DEVIATION FROM SINGLE-FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL USE RESTRICTIONS FOR LOTS 6-17 INCLUSIVE
OF BLOCK 44, UNIVERSITY HILL FARMS - NORTH HILL
ADDITION TO CITY OF MADISON

WHEREAS, Lots 6 to 17 inclusive of Block 44 of University Hill Farms - North Hill Addition to the City of Madison, Dane County, Wisconsin, are subject to a certain Declaration of Covenants, Restrictions and Easements set forth in the recorded plat of said Addition, and

WHEREAS, item 4 of the "Land Use and Building Types" restriction of said plat provides that "other than single-family residential use may be authorized by the Regents, and where the restrictions herein conflict with the authorized use, such restrictions may be amended by the Regents", and

WHEREAS, the Regents have received an acceptable offer for the sale of the above described lots conditioned upon the authorization by the Regents of a deviation by the purchaser from the single-family residential use requirement mentioned above,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following deviations from single-family residential use be and the same hereby are authorized as to said lots:

- 1. Apartment buildings;
- 2. Gasoline service stations;
- 3. A motel and/or hotel with restaurant and/or bar facilities providing that such facilities.

- together, do not occupy more than 15% of the total square foot area of such motel and/or hotel structure:
- 4. Any other business which is not engaged in selling merchandise to the general public at retail on said premises;
- 5. An office building, or buildings, without restriction as to type or classification of tenants except as herein provided.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the deviations aforesaid shall be permissible and authorized only upon the condition that the purchaser, its successors and assigns shall not, except with the express written consent of the Regents, carry on, or suffer to be carried on, on said premises for a period of twenty (20) years from the date of the acceptance by the Regents of an offer to purchase said lots, any business involving the sale of merchandise to the general public at retail, including but not limited to banking, savings and loan association offices, laundry pickup and delivery, barber shops, beauty shops, drug and variety stores or restaurants or other similar establishments selling food or beverages to the general public at retail.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Regents hereby consent and agree to any zoning ordinance changes which may be necessary and requested by the purchaser, its successors and assigns, for the proper exercise and enjoyment of the deviations above authorized by the Regents.

There was further discussion of the proposal to restrict the construction of a motel or hotel in Block 45 of the North Hill Addition for a period of twenty years. Regent Rennebohm noted that the restriction with reference to Block 45 made it possible to realize a greater amount for the proposed sale in Block 44. He also noted that the restrictions with reference to retail outlets would minimize competion with the Hill Farm Shopping Center. There was discussion of whether the Regents could bind future Boards regarding the twenty-year restrictions applicable to Block 45. Regent Renk noted that Block 45 is the site of the College of Agriculture Seed Cleaning Plant and that this area would not be sold for many years.

Regent Watson seconded the motion to approve the first of the two foregoing resolutions and it was voted.

Regent Renk moved the approval of the second of the two foregoing resolutions of the Business and Finance Committee. The motion was seconded by Regent Werner and it was voted.

Upon motion of Regent Renk, seconded by Regent Bassett, it was VOTED, That, upon recommendation of the Director of Residence Halls, the following schedule of rates for room and board in the University Residence Halls at

Madison be approved effective with the 1960 eight-week Summer Session:

		nuu uud nuud
WOMEN		Room and Board per Person
Elizabeth V	Waters	
Double Single		\$185.00 205.00
Kronshage	(Chamberlin, Swenson and Jones)	
Double Single		\$175.00 195.00
Cole		
Double Single		\$175.00 195.00
<u>MEN</u>		
Kronshage	(Turner, Gilman, Mack, Conover and Showerman)	
Double Single		\$175.00 195.00
Sullivan H	all	
Double Single		\$175.00 195.00
MARRIED CO	UPLES	Room and Board per Couple
Slichter		\$320.00

NOTE: Rates for sessions of less than eight weeks will be prorated.

Upon motion of Regent Renk, seconded by Regent Watson, it was VOTED, That the Wisconsin Telephone Company, its successors and assigns, be granted an exclusive right of way and easement to place and maintain buried cable and other appliances beneath the surface of the land within the easterly 6 feet of Lot 8, Block 44, University Hill Farms - North Hill Addition, City of Madison, Dane County, Wisconsin; and that the President and the Secretary be authorized to sign the necessary documents.

President Steiger reported that the Special Regent Committee on the Future Development of the University had met on the preceding afternoon, with the other Regents present, and had received a report on the future development of the University of Wisconsin - Milwaukee by the UW-M Faculty Committee on the Future Development.

President Steiger read a telegram, which had been received subsequent to the action by the Regents on the resolution relating to the National Defense Education Act of 1958, from the Milwaukee Organization of Better Government Committee, recommending that recipients of tax money for scholarship purposes be required to give an oath similar to the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Regent Renk expressed disappointment in having read the newspaper report that the Joint Committee on Finance of the Legislature had voted against the proposed 8% salary increase for faculty members, as recommended by the Governor, for the 1960-61 budget. He presented the following resolution:

WHEREAS, The Regents of The University of Wisconsin have been deeply concerned over the low salary level of its faculty compared to that at comparable institutions and the consequent loss of key faculty members,

WHEREAS the great State of Wisconsin has grown and developed because of its quality State University,

WHEREAS our Nation at this critical time needs strong public universities to adequately train our young men and women for the challenging problems facing this country,

WHEREAS the Regents learned during their meeting that the Joint Finance Committee of the State Legislature voted to remove from the proposed budget for 1960-61 the 8 per cent salary increase for faculty members,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by The Regents of The University of Wisconsin:

- 1. That the Legislature be requested to reconsider this action of its Finance Committee.
- 2. That the citizens of Wisconsin give serious consideration to the relative expenditures for education and for other activities, both public and individual, keeping in mind the serious consequences resulting if our institutions of higher education cannot maintain quality and at the same time meet the heavy demands which will be placed upon them in the next four years. For, if the quality of our faculty is impaired, it will take many years and many additional dollars to build it back to the stature that our citizens want.

Regent Renk moved the adoption of the resolution, and the motion was seconded by Regent DeBardeleben.

Regent DeBardeleben spoke in support of the resolution. He noted that, as the resolution stated, the people of the State of Wisconsin are concerned about providing high quality higher education in Wisconsin. He believed that the taxpayers of the state have indicated their genuine concern with the problems of education in this state by their provision, in practically every school district of the State of Wisconsin, of greatly improved facilities for elementary and secondary schooling. He stated that this indicates that the people of the State of Wisconsin feel, as he knew the members of this Board do, that, in this day and age, the education of our young, both at the lower and the higher educational levels, is more important than ever before in the history of the state. He noted that the resolution very appropriately asks our citizens to keep in mind the relative expenditures for education and other activities, both personal and public. He mentioned several comparisons for personal expenditures for items which are less essential than education, such as an expenditure of less than three billion dollars in all of the universities and colleges in the country, as compared to more than twelve billion dollars for tobacco and liquor, and more than fifteen billion dollars for recreation, annually. He also noted that the people of the State of Wisconsin have approved and do approve the action of past legislatures in revising upward the wholly inadequate salaries which legislators pay themselves.

Regent Steiger indicated agreement with Regent DeBardeleben's remarks; and noted that we are spending about \$35.00 per capita for highways, compared to about \$5.00 per capita for education. He expressed conviction that the citizens of the State of Wisconsin are willing to support an adequate budget for the University. He noted that the University could operate for several years without funds for faculty salary increases, but would lose some of the "blue ribbon" men on the faculty and would suffer the loss, for many years, not only of the "blue ribbon" members of the faculty, but also of the capable young faculty members. Regent DeBardeleben noted that, at almost every meeting of the Educational Committee and of the Board, the Regents have been presented with resignations of faculty members who have resigned because salaries are inadequate.

Regent Bassett stated that, as he was sure the whole Board was, he was aware of the inadequacy of the salaries of our faculty. He stated that there is nothing more important than the quality and caliber of those who are teaching our children. He also noted that, in view of the tax situation and in the interests of the economy of the state, that, at the same time the Regents have an obligation of approving faculty salaries, they have an obligation of assaying and reappraising other aspects and operations of the University, such as the use of buildings and the use of staff. Regent Bassett suggested that the second paragraph of the proposed resolution should be revised, since the growth and development of the State of Wisconsin has not been due solely to the quality of the University. He also questioned whether paragraph 1. of the proposed resolution should be directed to the Legislature or the Joint Committee on Finance. After discussion of the two questions raised by Regent Bassett regarding the wording of the resolution, Regents Renk and Bassett, who had moved and seconded the adoption of the resolution, agreed to amend their motion by inserting the words "in part" after the word "developed" in the second paragraph of the resolution, and to revise paragraph 1. of the resolution to read as follows:

1. That the Joint Committee on Finance and the Legislature be, and hereby are, respectfully requested to restore to the budget the 8 per cent salary increase for faculty members as recommended by the Governor.

The question was then put on the motion to adopt the resolution, as amended to read as follows, and it was voted:

WHEREAS, The Regents of The University of Wisconsin have been deeply concerned over the low salary level of its faculty compared to that at comparable institutions and the consequent loss of key faculty members,

WHEREAS the great State of Wisconsin has grown and developed in part because of its quality State University,

WHEREAS our Nation at this critical time needs strong public universities to adequately train our young men and women for the challenging problems facing this country,

WHEREAS the Regents learned during their meeting that the Joint Finance Committee of the State Legislature voted to remove from the proposed budget for 1960-61 the 8 per cent salary increase for faculty members,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by The Regents of The University of Wisconsin:

- 1. That the Joint Committee on Finance and the Legislature be, and hereby are, respectfully requested to restore to the budget the 8 per cent salary increase for faculty members as recommended by the Governor.
- 2. That the citizens of Wisconsin give serious consideration to the relative expenditures for education and for other activities, both public and individual, keeping in mind the serious consequences resulting if our institutions of higher education cannot maintain quality and at the same time meet the heavy demands which will be placed upon them in the next four years. For, if the quality of our faculty is impaired, it will take many years and many additional dollars to build it back to the stature that our citizens want.

Vice President Peterson, noting that the date of this meeting of the Regents had been advanced especially for the purpose of considering resolutions to be adopted relating to the pending bond issue of the Wisconsin State Agencies Building Corporation, stated that the resolutions were not ready and would not be ready for consideration by the Regents until their January meeting.



Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent DeBardeleben, it was VOTED, That the meeting adjourn.

The meeting adjourned at 10:48 A.M.

Clarke Smith, Secretary

- 1. \$ 200.00 St. Croix County Bankers Association, New Richmond, Wisconsin, for the support of two scholarships of \$100.00 each to be awarded to students enrolled in the Farm Short Course. (47-2731)
- 2. \$ 1,000.00 Mr. Duncan J. Stewart, Rockford, Illinois, an additional contribution toward the support of a graduate fellowship in Fishery Biology, Department of Zoology. (Graduate School) Additional contributions may be added to this fund from time to time. (47-2546)
- 3. \$ 25.00 Cecilio Alvarez Sanchez, Madison, Wisconsin, to be added to the "Correspondence Study Fund for the Improvement of Educational and Cultural Relationships Between the Americas" which fund was accepted by the Regents on July 14, 1956 Extension Division. (47-2216)
- 4. \$ 25.00 Karl A. Staley, Madison, Ohio, an unrestricted gift for use at the discretion of the President, given under the General Electric Corporate Alumnus Program. (Trust)
- 5. \$ 112.46 Cheever Memorial Loan Fund, representing repayments of loans made against the above discontinued fund, to be added to the Cheever Alumni Fund, as approved by the Regents on May 9, 1959. (Loan Fund)
- 6. \$ 25.00 Wisconsin Alumni Club of Racine, to be added to the Friends of the University Library Fund. (47-822)
- 7. \$ 100.00 Dr. George A. Fiedler, New York, an unrestricted gift to be added to the President's Special Fund. (Trust)
- 8. \$ 500.00 Frederick A. Whate, Schenectady, New York, given in appreciation of a research grant received by the donor while a student in the History of Science Department, to be used for the support of graduate students, preferably in the Department of History of Science. The gift is made under the General Electric Foundation Corporate Alumnus Program, and the matching contribution made by the Foundation shall also be added to this fund. (Graduate School) (47-3069)
- 9. \$ 200.00 Dr. A. J. Herlitzka, Mason City, Iowa, for the continued support of the "LaCrosse Student Scholarship Fund" in accordance with conditions approved by the Regents on October 24, 1959. (47-3022)

- 10. \$ 100.00 The Milwaukee Company, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, a gift to continue support of an annual award known as the "Griffin Award" to the student who does the best work in courses relating to the investment business. The Committee on Awards of the Scholarship Committee of the School of Commerce shall make the selection of the student to receive this award. (47-2665)
- Mr. Hyim Howard, West Los Angeles, California, a gift to the Memorial Library of 188 volumes in Hebrew, valued at approximately \$755.
- 12. \$ 25.00 An anonymous donor, a gift to be used for research in Psychotherapy, Department of Psychiatry. Additional contributions may be added to this fund. (47-2796)
- 13. \$ 200.00 The Bank of Spooner, Wisconsin, for the continuation of a Farm Short Course Scholarship during the period of the 1959-60 Farm Short Course. An award of \$200 will be made to a farm youth nominated by the Bank of Spooner and certified by the Dean of the College of Agriculture upon enrollment of the student in the Farm Short Course. (47-3005)
- 14. \$ 225.00 Manitowoc Bankers Association, Manitowoc, Wisconsin, for the establishment and support during the period November 16, 1959 to March 12, 1960, of three scholarships of \$75.00 each to be awarded to three students enrolled in the Farm Short Course. The donor reserves the right to nominate the scholarship recipients subject to final approval of the Dean of The College of Agriculture and the Loans Fellowship and Scholarship Committee. The scholarships shall be known as the "Manitowoc County Bankers Association Short Course Scholarship". (47-3057)
- 15. \$ 75.00 The Manitowoc Chamber of Commerce, Manitowoc, Wisconsin, for the establishment and support during the period November 16, 1959 to March 12, 1960, of a scholarship of \$75.00 to be awarded to a student enrolled in the Farm Short Course. The donor reserves the right to nominate the scholarship recipient subject to final approval of the Dean of the College of Agriculture and the Loans Fellowship and Scholarship Committee. The scholarship shall be known as the "Manitowoc Chamber of Commerce Short Course Scholarship". (47-3073)

- 16. \$ 75.00 Manitowoc Newspapers Inc., Manitowoc, Wisconsin, for the establishment and support during the period November 16, 1959 to March 12, 1960, of one scholarship of \$75.00 to be awarded to a student enrolled in the Farm Short Course. The donor reserves the right to nominate the scholarship recipient subject to final approval of the Dean of The College of Agriculture, and the Loans Fellowship and Scholarship Committee. The scholarship shall be known as the "Manitowoc Newspapers Incorporated Short Course Scholarship". (47-3059)
- 17. \$ 25.00 Lake to Lake Dairy Co-operative, Manitowoc, Wisconsin, a gift for the support of a scholarship award to a student from Manitowoc County enrolled in the Farm Short Course. The donor reserves the right to nominate the scholarship recipient subject to final approval of the Dean of the College of Agriculture and the Loans Fellowship and Scholarship Committee. (47-3072)
- 18. \$ 50.00 Valders Elevator, Valders, Wisconsin, for the support of a scholarship award to a student from Manitowoc County enrolled in the Farm Short Course. The donor reserves the right to nominate the scholarship recipient subject to final approval of the Dean of the College of Agriculture and the Loans Fellowship and Scholarship Committee. (47-3058)
- 19. \$ 7,000.00 Alfred P. Sloan Foundation, New York, to provide annual stipends for five Alfred P. Sloan National Scholars for a two-year period, beginning with the academic year 1960-61. (47-3074)
- 20. \$ 100.00 Wausau Production Credit Association, Wausau, Wisconsin, for the support of a scholarship in the Farm Short Course. (47-2777)
- 21. \$ 50.00 Kenneth G. Black, Scotia, New York, an unrestricted gift to be added to the President's Special Fund (Trust), given under the General Electric Foundation Corporate Alumnus Program. A matching contribution to be made by the General Electric Foundation shall also be added to the President's Special Fund.
- 22. \$ 25.00 Charles N. Clark, Cleveland, Ohio, an unrestricted gift to be added to the President's Special Fund (Trust), given under the General Electric Foundation Corporate Alumnus Program. A matching contribution to be made by the General Electric Foundation shall also be added to the President's Special Fund.

- Haentze Floral Company, Fond du Lac, Wisconsin, a gift of 500 poinsettia plants, for use in the floriculture research program in the College of Agriculture. The plants are valued at approximately \$130.00.
- Westinghouse Electric Corporation, Madison, Wisconsin, a gift of a generalized rotating machine to be used in the instructional programs of the Department of Electrical Engineering. The machine has an estimated value of \$2,350.00.
- Reptschler's Greenhouses, Madison, Wisconsin, a gift of equipment consisting of six industrial type aerosols, two brass aerators with nozzles, one applicator hose, and one gas mask with carrying bag, having a value of approximately \$123.00, for use in floriculture research in the College of Agriculture.
- 26. \$ 1,000.00 Socony Mobil Oil Company, Inc., Dallas, Texas, a gift to be used for the purchase of X-ray equipment for use in the field research laboratory in the Department of Geology. (17-3075)
- 27. \$ 220.00 South East Wisconsin Branch of the American Pharmaceutical Association, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, to establish the Wisconsin Branch of the American Pharmaceutical Association Grant in Pharmacy as of February 1, 1960. The award shall be given in whole or in part to a Wisconsin resident who is interested in seeking a career in pharmacy by attending the School of Pharmacy at the University of Wisconsin, and may be awarded to any qualified Wisconsin resident. The recipient of the grant will be selected by the Committee on Grants and Scholarships of the School of Pharmacy, at the rate of \$110 each semester. The fund shall continue until terminated by the Board of Directors of the Wisconsin Branch of the Wisconsin Pharmaceutical Association. (47-3077)
- 28. \$ 5,200.00 Bates & Rogers Foundation, Chicago, Illinois, for the continued support of scholarships in the College of Engineering, to be awarded in accordance with program approved by the Regents on July 17, 1954. (47-1129)
- 29. \$ 62.00 Members of the University Heights Poetry Club, Madison, Wisconsin, given in memory of the late Mrs. Leonard R. Ingersoll, to be added to the L. R. Ingersoll Memorial Fund. (Trust)

### GIFTS:

- 30. \$ 5,000.00 Mrs. C. B. Clark (Jessie Kerwin Clark), Neenah, Wisconsin, an additional contribution to be added to the "Justice James C. Kerwin Scholarships," to be administered in accordance with terms approved by the Regents on October 24, 1959. (47-2324)
- 31. \$ 400.00 - Wood County Bankers Association for the continuation of two Farm Short Course Scholarships during the 1959-60 session of the Farm Short Course. The scholarships shall be awarded to farm youths upon enrollment in the Farm Short Course and selection and certification by the College of Agriculture. (47-1032)
- 32. \$ 862.50 The General Electric Foundation, Ossining, New York, an unrestricted gift matching contributions made by alumni under the General Electric Corporate Alumnus Program, to be added to the President's Special Fund. (Trust)
- 33. That the conditions for awarding the University of Wisconsin School of Nursing Alumnae Association Nursing Scholarship, as recommended by the Alumnae Scholarship Committee be approved:
  - 1. That the income from the fund be used for the support of one or more scholarships to be awarded to recipients selected by the University Committee on Nursing Scholar-
  - 2. These scholarships are to be granted to students with a minimum of junior standing enrolled in the School of Nursing.
  - 3. Students granted these scholarships shall be in good standing in the School of Nursing and financial need shall be taken into consideration in making the award.
  - 4. The conditions of award may be amended upon the recommendation of the University Committee on Nursing Scholarships as approved by the Regents of the University of Wisconsin. (Trust Fund)
  - Professor G. P. Woollard, Madison, Wisconsin, a gift for use of the Department of Geology (Geophysics Section) of a used GMC 4-speed panel truck for research work in the Department. The truck has a market value of approximately \$150.00.
- 35. Sun/Oil Company, Beaumont, Texas, a gift of a LaCoste gravity meter No. 27 valued at approximately \$250.00 and an Askania magnetometer valued at \$300.00, for use in the Geology Department of the University of Wisconsin.

34.

- 36. \$ 100.00 Citizens National Bank, Marshfield, Wisconsin, for the continuation of a Farm Short Course Scholarship in the College of Agriculture for the year 1959-60. The recipient shall be certified by the Dean of the College of Agriculture and the Loans, Fellowship and Scholarship Committee. (47-843)
- 37. \$ 156.00 Friends of the late Mrs. L. R. Ingersoll, given in her memory, to be added to the L. R. Ingersoll Memorial Fund. (Trust)

- 1. \$ 550.00 Nitrogen Division, Allied Chemical Company, New York,
  New York, a grant in support of research entitled "A
  Study of the Flavor Acceptance of Potatoes Grown with
  Urea-Type Fertilizers" during the period October 1, 1959
  to June 30, 1960, Department of Dairy and Food Industries.
  (47-3067)
- Oscar Mayer & Co., Madison, Wisconsin, Meat Products to be used for research and educational purposes by the various departments of the University, for the period November 1, 1959 to November 1, 1960. Estimated value \$8,400.00.
- 3. \$ 5,000.00 The Inland Daily Press Association, Chicago, Illinois, for the continued support of a research project, having for its purpose a Study and Analysis of the Supply of and Demand for Newsprint in 12 midwestern states. Bureau of Business Research and Service, The School of Commerce. (47-3068)
- 4. \$ 5,400.00 National Dairy Council, Chicago, Illinois, for the support of a research project to study the effects of certain mineral nutrients in relation to blood vessel health and disease, January 1, 1960 to December 31, 1960, Department of Biochemistry. (47-2819)
- 5. \$ 3,000.00 American Smelting and Refining Company, South Plainfield,
  New Jersey, grant to continue support of research on
  selenium and tellurium, in the Department of Chemistry,
  October 1, 1959 to September 30, 1960. (L&S) (47-2681)
- 6. \$ 4,000.00 Standard Oil Company (Indiana), Chicago, Illinois, for the support of research in the Mechanical Engineering Department entitled "Fundamental Combustion Studies," during the period September 1, 1959 through August 31, 1960. (47-3027)
- 7. \$ 1,600.00 Wilson and Company, Inc., Chicago, Illinois, an additional contribution for the continuation of a research project to study the effects of processing upon nutritive value of meat and meat by-products, September 1, 1959 August 31, 1960, Department of Biochemistry. (47-190)
- 8. \$ 1,500.00 The Mational Drug Company, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, for the support of a research project entitled "Clinical Evaluation of a New Anorexigenic Agent, Diethylpropion (Tepanil)" Department of Psychiatry. (47-3078)

- 9. \$ 3,000.00 Rhodia, Incorporated, New York, for the support of an industrial research project during the period December 1, 1959 through November 30, 1960, having for its purpose a study of the effect of dietary spiramycin on growth rate and efficiency of feed conversion of chickens Department of Poultry Husbandry. (47-3076)
- 10. \$ 6,000.00 State Conservation Commission of Wisconsin, Madison, Wisconsin, for the support of a cooperative basic study of the relationships of ground and surface water storage using the Little Plover River Drainage Basin as a pilot area, to be conducted by the Wisconsin Geological and Natural Survey, and the Ground Water Branch of the Geological Survey, U. S. Department of the Interior. (47-3080)

- National Institutes of Health, Bethesda, Maryland, to support the following research projects:
  - 1) \$ 50,000.00 A training grant in the area of Basic and Applied Physiology, during the period April 1, 1960 through March 31, 1961 Cardiovascular Research Laboratory. (HTS-5364(C1)) (484-2996)
  - 2) \$ 30,705.00 'Mechanism of Action of Estrogenic Hormones," during the period January 1, 1960 through December 31, 1960 Department of Oncology. (CY-1897(C7)) (484-2997)
  - 3) \$ 14,950.00 "Amino Acids in Neurologic and Mental Deficiency,"
    during the period December 1, 1959 through November 30,
    1960 Department of Pediatrics. (M-2730(C1)) (484-2999)
  - 4) \$ 30,619.00 "Psychosomatic Relationships in Adaptation," during the period December 1, 1959 through November 30, 1960 Department of Psychiatry. (M-2743(C1)) (484-3001)
  - 5) \$ 9,200.00 "Neural Mechanisms of Sequential Behavior," during the period December 1, 1959 through November 30, 1960 Department of Physiology. (M-2786(C1)) (484-3002)
  - 6) \$ 6,382.00 "Role of Potassium in Cardiac Arrhythmias," during the period January 1, 1960 through December 31, 1960 Department of Physiology. (H-1203(C7)) (484-3003)
  - 7) \$ 11,500.00 "Electron-Transporting Lipids in Mitochondria," for the period January 1, 1960 through December 31, 1960 Institute for Enzyme Research. (RG-5506(C2))(484-3005)
- National Science Foundation, Washington, D. C., to support the following research project:
  - Termination date of grant in support of research entitled "Origin and Development of Basic Behavior Patterns," extended through approximately June 30, 1960 Department of Zoology. (G3299) (484-2253)

# Supplemental Information

# December 1959

	December . 1959	December 1958	
Research	\$ 134,431.00	\$ 148,337.67	
Instruction	50,000.00	135,900.00	
Libraries	25.00	55.00	
Physical Plant		10,439.00	
Student Aid	21,000.46	37,278.47	
Unrestricted	1,062.50	1,365.00	
Miscellaneous	25.00	5,750.00	
Gifts in kind	12,458.00	5,425.00	
Totals, December	\$ 219,001.96 (1)	\$ 344,550.14 (2)	
Previously Reported	7,883,028.72	4,184,081.96	
Grand Totals	8,102,030.68	4,528,632.10	

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes \$153,356 from Federal Agencies.

<sup>(2)</sup> Includes \$166,817 from Federal Agencies.

SUPPLEMENTAL LIST -- GIFTS AND GRANTS (Amounts not included in the totals for EXHIBIT A)

### GIFTS:

39.

100.00 - An anonymous donor, to be used for the purchase of 38. \$ equipment for the children's section of the University Hospitals, or to assist in defraying expenditures in connection with any Christmas party that may be held for the crippled children. (47-3081)

> That the paintings described below given by Marc B. Rejtman, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, be accepted for use in connection with the educational purposes of the University:

Artist	Title	Description	Value
Gerard Seghers Flemish: 1591-1651	"The Denial of Peter"	463x65 3/4 inches	\$18,000.
Mathieu LeNain French: 1607 (?)-1677	"Three Urchins"	hhx55 <sup>1</sup> inches	12,500.
Alonzo Sanchez Coello Spanish: 1515-1590	"Lady With A Pet Dog"	49x35½ inches	8,000.
Hendrik van der Burch	"The Card Game"	35x45½ inches	20,000.
Dutch: f1. 1650-60		Total	<b>\$58,500</b>

Eldon B. Russell, Madison, Wisconsin, a gift of securities having a market value of approximately \$525, to establish a prize in the amount of \$500, to be known as the "H. L. Russell Award," to a graduate teaching assistant to recognize publicly his excellence as a teacher. Preference shall be given to a recipient who would continue as a teaching assistant for at least one year after receiving the award. It is the hope of the donor that this award may stimulate some young person to find the same thrill and satisfaction in teaching that the late Dean H. L. Russell did. Proceeds in excess of \$500 from the sale of the securities shall be added to the H. L. Russel Memorial (Trust). (47-3082)

Mr. Aaron Scheinfeld, Chicago, Illinois, a gift to the Memorial Library of forty (40) volumes in Hebrew, valued at approximately \$200.00. 44 6 34-1

41.

40.

SUPPLEMENTAL LIST -- GIFTS AND GRANTS (Amounts not included in the totals for Exhibit  $\underline{A}$ )

- 13. \$ 34,400.00 Wational Science Foundation, Washington, D. C., a grant in support of a "Summer Institute in Field Biology for High School Teachers of Biology," for a period of approximately six weeks beginning on or about June 20, 1960 Department of Botany, University of Wisconsin Milwaukee. (G10573) (484-3010)
- 14. \$ 46,100.00 National Science Foundation, Washington, D. C., a grant in support of a "Summer Institute in Physics for High School Teachers of Physics," for a period of approximately six weeks beginning on or about June 20, 1960 -- Department of Physics, University of Wisconsin Milwaukee. (G10287) (484-3011)

### RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORT OF THE VICE PRESIDENT - BUSINESS AND FINANCE

to the

BOARD OF REGENTS

December 3, 1959

### I. Recommendations

1. That the following employees in the Department of Protection and Security be deputized University Police Officers:

Ronald D. Bauer

Kenneth H. Weidl

Eugene S. Ganser.

- 2. That the Executive Committee be authorized to act for the Board in the award of contracts and approval of schedule of costs for the repairing of a residence at the new Swine Center located on the farmstead of the former Caldwell Farm at the University Farm at Arlington (bids close December 8, 1959).
- 3. That, upon the recommendation of the Dean of the College of Agriculture, the following budget be approved for a special State appropriation for Bovine Tuberculosis Test Research (20.830(6)):

Salaries & Wages Supplies & Expense Capital \$9,000.00 5,000.00 4,000.00 \$18,000.00

- II. Report of Actions Taken by the State Building Commission on November 19, 1959, Affecting the University
  - 1. Allotted \$2,600,000 for construction of the Milwaykee Science Building and authorized advertising for bids.
  - 2. Allotted \$34,575.56 to pay the balance of the principal on the Law Library Loan.
  - 3. Allotted \$15,000 for preparation of plans and specifications for remodelling Milwaukee Downer Seminary buildings.
- Report of Actions Taken Contracts and Leases with United States Government for research work, educational programs and services requested by the Government for military personnel and veterans.

III. Report of Actions Taken - Contracts and Leases etc., Continued.

Agency	Contract No.	Mod.	No.	Addnl. Fund Provided		ermination Date	<u>Department</u>	Fund No (484)
AIR RESEARCH				25-0-		10/07/40		
4. Wright Air Development Center	AF 41(657)-188	2.	<b>(</b> 0v	\$187 verhead Adju			Anesthesiology	7 2471
NAVY RESEARCH								
5. Office of Naval Research	Nonr-2824(00)	1		\$628 evision of C ections C &		2/29/60 24, and	Astronomy	2781
INSTRUCTION  6. XIV US Army Corps (Reserve)	DA-21-027-AV-105			\$544.1		6/4/60	Mil. Sci.	2986
	(Flight Instruct	ion)	(1	addl. train	nee)			

- IV. Report of Actions Taken Memorandum Agreements U. W. Press (Pursuant to Regent Authorization of March 14, 1942)

  (See Exhibit B-1, attached)
- V. Budget Transfers

  (See Exhibit B-1, attached)

# MEMORAMDUM AGREEMENTS - UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN PRESS

### Title of Publication

Author

The Poems of John Collop

Conrad Hilberry

The Roots of Romantic Narrative Poetry

Karl Kroeber

The Earth's Problem Climates

Glenn T. Trewartha

### Budget Transfers

Date	Amount	From	<u>To</u>	Purpose
11/18/59	\$3,984	1-41 President's Unassigned	1-41 UW-M. L&S Music Salaries & Wages - Ext & Publ Service	Chamber Orch. Concerts
11/19/59	1,884	1-41 President's Unassigned	1-41 Gen Univ Service- News Service-Supplies and Expense-Gen Admin & General Expense	471 Badgers for High Schools in the state
11/23/59	500	1-41 Radio & T.V Radio Equipment, Ext & Publ Ser.	1-41 Radio & T.VTele- vision, Equipment, Ext.	Control Room equipment

President's Unassigned Balances:

General

General \$66,089.75 Special Capital 97,000.00

# RESOLUTION CONCERNING AFFIDAVIT AND OATH PROVISIONS OF NATIONAL DEFENSE EDUCATION ACT OF 1958

WHEREAS, the National Defense Education Act of 1958 requires each eligible student, as a condition precedent to receiving any payment or loan under the Act, first, to execute and file an affidavit of disbelief, non-membership, and non-support in and of any organization that believes in or teaches the overthrow of the United States Government by force or violence or by any illegal or unconstitutional methods and, second, to take and subscribe an oath or affirmation that he will bear true faith and allegiance to the United States and will support and defend the Constitution and laws of the United States against all enemies, foreign and domestic; and

WHEREAS, The Regents of The University of Wisconsin, at the time of initially approving participation by The University of Wisconsin under the Act, protested the affidavit and oath requirements of the Act; and

WHEREAS, the affidavit and oath provisions of the Act are suggestive of a trammeling of inquiry by subjecting thoughts, research, and learning to political restrictions and are, therefore, contrary to the sound principles of academic freedom upon which the leadership of The University of Wisconsin, in independent research and in scholarly learning, has been grounded; and

WHEREAS, contrary to the settled doctrine of American jurisprudence that an individual is presumed innocent of wrongdoing unless proven guilty, the affidavit and oath provisions of the Act unfairly and unjustifiably single out as objects of distrust and suspicion the needy students in our colleges and universities; and

WHEREAS, even if the affidavit and oath provisions of the Act were not otherwise objectionable, the requirements imposed are purposeless because, in a democracy, fealty to one's government cannot be compelled but must be deserved and won; and

WHEREAS, notwithstanding continuing and unyielding opposition to the affidavit and oath provisions of the Act, it is the opinion of The Regents of The University of Wisconsin that the doors of the tax-supported University of Wisconsin cannot be properly closed to needy students, having no personal objection to the affidavit and oath requirements of the Act, who are obliged to avail themselves of the benefits of the Act in order to secure educations,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by The Regents of The University of Wisconsin:

- 1. That the said affidavit and oath provisions of the National Defense Education Act of 1958 be, and the same hereby are, again unequivocally opposed and condemned:
- 2. That Wisconsin's United States Senators and Members of the House of Representatives be, and they hereby are, respectfully urged to propose and support the repeal of said affidavit and oath provisions of the National Defense Education Act of 1958 in the Congress of the United States, and that a copy of this resolution be furnished to each member of Wisconsin's congressional delegation; and
- 3. That the President of The University of Wisconsin be, and he hereby is, authorized and directed to cause to be furnished to each student indicating a desire to apply for benefits under the said Act a copy of this resolution.